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Busia Counq (Pttblic Offtcers,) Revolvi'ug Fund
Annual Ite I)o rt and Financial Statements for the ar cnded June 30, 2023yc

- l. X"y Entity lnformatlon and Management
a) Background informatlon

'[hc Busia County Public officers Revolving fund is a revolving fund established pursuant to the
selaries and Remunerati<ln commission lsRc; circurar nurnber sRC/TSMH/3/14 of l4o
February 2014. Section 167 of the public Flnance Management (pFM) Act 2012 mandates the
administrator of public funds with the prepamtion of annuar finaucial statements.

For proper l:ranagcment ofthe fund and as advised by the SRC in the circular under the reference,
Efusia county.Executive adop_ted the PFM regulations 2014 to guide in the operationalization oftheruno' As advised by tlte SRC and as provided for under regulation 16 of the said regulations, the6unty Exccutive Mcmber appointed Secretary to the Board to manage the fund.

Ttc SRC in its circular referencc SRC/ADM/CIR/I/13 Vol.III (128) datcd l7'h December 2014ptovided guidelines for acccss ofCar loan and Mortgage benefits by statc and public oflicers.

The fund is wholly owned by rhe counfy Executive of Busia and is domiciled in Kenya.

b) Prlncipal Activities

[e nrlnginlt activity of the fund is to mobilise resources and create a pool of funds that public
o[rcers rn the service of thc county Govcrnmcnt, othcr than those in the county Assembly
Sorvice, may access car and nrortgagC loans.

I
Co Obicc t ivcs

Pmvision of Affordable loans to officers in the County Execurive.

Vblon

"The Fund ofchoice for Members ofthe County Executive and Staff,

Mlsslon

"To provide affordable, accessible and sustainable car loans and Mortgage to membcrs of the
Cclrnty Executive and Staff'

c) Fund Adnrlnlstration Conrnrittcc

I Elphas Omativa Chairperson

2 Truphenah Akide Secretary/Adrninis trator
3 Amos Imooh Chicf Oflicers Representative
4 Mercy Imo Member

5 Elly Okiringr Member

llt
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Annual Ileport and Financial Statements for the ycar cndcd Junc 30, 2023

I Truphenah Akide Fund Manager/ Administrator
) Amos lmooh Chief Oflicer Representative

3 Chairnran

4 Verah Ingutia

6 James Ekasiba Menrber

d) Key Managenrent Tcam

e) Fiduclary Ovcr3ight Arrangements

Office Of The Auditor Gencral

g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: (254) 12 t97't 044
Truphenah Akide
Fund Adnrinistrator

h) Fund Bankcrs

Co-oferative Bank of Kenya
Busia Branch

il

Busia County Assernbly

Directorate Internal AuditI

.,

3

\

Nurno Posilioni.

Elphas Omatwa

Accountant

SN il'ositiurr Nunrc

l) Reglstered Offices

Private Bag
Busia County Covernment Head Office
Busia - Kisumu /Road./Highway
Busia, KENYA

Zadock Koech
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Entity and Managcment (Contlnued)

Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Oftice of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Prlnclpal Legal Adviser,
The Attorney General
State Law Office
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

The Oflice Of 'l'hc County Attorney

BOX Private Bag

(K)

a
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Annual Rcport and Financial Sletements for the year ended June 30, 2023

4. Fund Administration Committee

The board of trustccs during the financial year consistcd of

OMATWA ELPHAS KELVIN.CHAIRPERSON
l2'h April l99O

Chair of the fund board and signatory to thc fund bank account

BBM-Financc and Banking

Moi University

6years experience in linance and administration

ELI ELIUD OKIRING-MEMBER
3lsr January 1987

Mcmber

Undergraduate Social Sciencc

(Sociology/ Political Science)

Catholic Univcrsity

Over Tyears experience

C.S TRUPHENA AKIDE _ SECRETARY
Bom 20'h August 1966

Overall administration of the fund and also serves as the
secretary to the fund board.

Sigratory to the fund bank account

Masters of Business Administration

Bachelor of Commerce

CPS(K)

cHRP(K)
Over 20 years' experiencc

I

Busia County (Public Olficers') Revolving Fund

l
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G
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JAMES EKASIBA AMOS
20s December 1988

Member

Postgraduate diploma-tax Administration

CPAK
BCOM Finance

Masinde Muliro University

lOyears expcrience

A
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5. Man ment Team

AS OMATWA

C.S TRUPHENAH AKIDE

AMOS Ii\IOOH

VERAH INGUTIA

l2d'April 1990

Chair of the fund board and signatory to the lund
bank account

BBM-Finance and Banking

Moi University

6 years' experience in finance and administration

Born 20d'August 1966

Overall administration of the fund and also serves
as the secretary to the fund board.

Signatory to the fund bank account

Masters of Business Administration

Bachelor of Commercc

CPS(K)

cHRP(K)
Over 20 years' experiencc

30/08/1986

Masters in Hcalth Economics and Public Policy

BSc Economics and Finance

12 years of Experiencc in finance and budgeting

Administration and Book-keeping

Sigrratory to thc bank fund account

07t03n992
Bachelor of Business Management-Accounting
and Finance

7 years of work cxperience

Prcparation of Financial Rcpons and Book-keeping

I

vlll

Dctails of qualifications and crperiencc
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Busia County (Public Ollicers') Revolvitrg Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statemen ts for the year ended Ju1e30, 2023
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AMOS O. IMOOH - MEMBER
30'h August 1986

Masters in Health Economics and Public Policy

BSc Economics and Finance

l2 ycars of Expcriencc in finance and budgcting

Administration and Book-kceping

Signatory to the bank fi.rnd account

MERCY TMO.MEMBER
l8rh March 1970

Membe r

Master of Arts (Kiswahili)-Moi University

B. ED Ans-Kenyatta University

Over 3Oyears cxperience

VERAH INGUTIA
07th March t992

Accountant to the Fund

Bachclor of Business Management-Accounting and Finance

Tyears of work experience

Preparation of Financial Reports and Book-kceping
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Busia County (Pttblic Olliccrs') Revolvittg Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcmcnts for the year ended June 30,2023

a

6. Fund Chairperson's Report

It b my pleasure to present, on behalfofthe loans' Board, thc Busia County Public Oflicers'
Rovolving Fund financial statements for the year ended 306 Junc 2023. The financial statements

pr6sent the financial performance of thc fund for thc same year.

Sustainability
Ttr fund and its stakeholders are increasingly cmphasizing on the necd to cnsure sustainability for
both its investments and its resource mobilization and financing capabilities with an objective of
eiluring that the fund's going conccm is secured.

Board and Managemcnt Changes
The Board r.eceived two rrew members: Madam Truphenah Akide as the new Secretsry with
refercnce to Sec. 19 of the Regulations that states that the C.E.O to the Busia County Public

Scrvicc Board should be thc Secretary to the Fund and.Madam Mercy Maende Imo who replaced

thc former Chief Officer Public Service Administration and Gcndcr Affairs. The Vicc-Chair's
cqllract expired and recruitment process ongoing.

Revlew of pcrformance

Income
Thc fund earncd revenues amounting to KShs. 2,028,'127.50 from thc intcrest charged on the loans

thtt were disbursed lb members of the County Executive.
Pmjccts implementation during the period were carried out as per the plan with dte coordinated
efforts by all stakeholders. The performance was also attributed to a favourable opcning bank

balancc of KShs. 14,470,414.30 at the beginningof the year.

Elpenditures
Tbe total expenditures during the period amounted to KShs. 6,496,502. 15.00 which were all
administration costs.

Future outlook
The outlook ofthe Fund for the Financial year 2023/2024lools brighter. The fund focus is looking
to build a robust and sustainable fund with I motivated workforce and structurcs that enhance

cfficicncy and effectiveness in the service dclivery. The fund looks forward to continucd support
from the stakcholders to the realization of its mandate.

a

,x

F0rwerd
Under ttre year urrder review the ft1td was able to give out loans to I ruIre of ksh. 193,000,000

The county trcasury did not remit June deductions amounting to ksh. 2,392,810.00. The County
trcasury remitted a total of sh. 30,324,982.90 inclusive of the 2 1,921 ,895 that were unremitted
from the previous financial year. The Fund received new disbursement ofksh t50,000,000 frorn

the County Treasury as new funds.
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tion
I is opportunity to cxprcss my sincere gratitude and appreciation !o thc county govemment,

staff and fellow cornmittee memhrs for thcir continucd support which
Its

therefore on behalfofthe fund board, I would like to apprcciate it for the efforts and
it takcs to serving the public officers in the County Executive. The Fund will always

to be thc Fund of choice in the couttty

I forward to your continued support in the financial year 2023/2024.

on of the Fund Board

a

)
x

Signed:
Elphas



Bu Countlt (Public OlJiccrs') Revolving Fund
An ual Re ort and llinancial Statenrents for the r ended June 30, 2023

7. Report of The Fund Adrninistrator
It my pleasure to present the Busia County Public officcrs revolving fund financial statcments
for e year ended 30'h June 2023. The financial statements present thc financial performance of
thc fund over the past year

ancial Ircrforrnancc

a) Rcvenue

hr

ln year ended 30'r' June 2023, the fund had projected revenues ofKshs 2 ,028,727.50. Out of the
p

I

ected revenue, th5 fund was able to realise Kshs 2,028,727 .50 in actual revenues, representing
performancc

a

ng the year the fund was ablc to give out loans to 23 public ofliccrs in the county in ordcr to
them construct residential building and purchase cars. Out of the number, only 3 members

bei
for car loans as opposed to the rest who went for mortgage. The residential buitdings are still
put up.

w th the construction ofresidential houses for the public officers and once completed, the officers
bc able to live atecent life and the county wili generally be attractive and ietaining more

q liflicd staff. This will go along thc way in demonstrating value for the money given out to
ber

Th frurd gives loan at 3% interest ratc on reducing balance. This has thus made the funds loans
attractive to public officers in the County. It therefore poses a big challenge to the

nistration of the fund as demand ounveighs the available resources. [n the financial year
t2024, the fund anticipates to have a budget of ksh 200 million. This money will be given out

as to rnore menlbers in fonn ofrnofigage and car loans thus reducing the burden on the fund
ment

a

Rcf'*" lassificution Rcvenue budgct (KShs) Actual (KShs) Reallzadon
(%)

Reyenue KShs KShs

Pu$[c contributions and domations

fers from County Govt 150,000,000 1s0,000.000 100

trt{rcst inconrc 2,028,727.s0 2,028,727.50 100

fi"l"r, pcnutties 
"na 

other levies

Oder income

Tolal lncome 152.028.727.s0 100

xt

Tri

rs2,028,727.50

table below, we pt'esent an analysis of revenue performance during the year.
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tigate on potenrllal risks, the fund has enhanced its intcrnal controls tvith regard to utilization
managemcnt of the funds allocated to Busia county public olTicers revolving fund. loans

out to members have also been adequately secured through insurance andjoint charging of
ti deeds and log books

usion I take this opportun ity to thank the loans management committee for their support. I
also rvant to thank all staff rvho we have worked
Officers' Revolving fund achieves its mission.

hand in hand to ensure that Busia Corurty

S

A I<ide

ad minlstrator/Secrctary

a

I

x
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ln(

Statement of Perfornance Agalnst the Busia County Publlc Ofilcers, Rcvolvlng
Fund's Predcterrnined ObJectlves
uction

ion 164 (2) (D of the Public Finance Managemenr Act,2Ol2 requires rhat, at the end ofeach
cial year, the Accounting officer when preparing financial statements of each County

t Entity (iovemment entities in accordance with thc standards and formats prescribed
by
cnt

e Public Sector Accounting Standards Board includes a statemcnt of the county goverrunent
's performance against predetermined objectives

key development objectives of the Fund as per the strategic plan for 2022/202j to

a)
b)
c)

Provide Affordable car and morrgage loans to public offices in Busia County
obilize financirlt'

Undertake prudent

gress on altrillment of Stratcgic dcvclopnrcnt objectlves

wc ovide the s on attarnrn thc statcd ob ecalves

ision of
rdable loans

To award low
interest loans to
public officers in
Busia County

Increased
demand for loans

Number of
applicants
applying for loans

lnFY 2022123 a
total of 26
officcrs
expressed interest
in accessing car
and mortgage
loans. A total of
193 million was
disbursed to
members

lbilization of
fncial
Durces

Mo
fiu
res(

To mobilizc
financial
resources to the

frnd

Incrcase in fund
resource basket

Amount of
rnoney available
to issuc out as

loans to public
officers

nt ol
Pnldent
,*frug"*"
reburce.

I

'lo pnrdcntly
manage the fund

Improve the
quality of
quarterly and
annual reports

Number of timely
reports produced
by thc fund

The fund
preparcd Ql, Q2,
Q3, Q4 and
Annual financial

I

xl lt

resources for the fund
management of the fund's financial resources

()bJectivePt'{gluur Oulconrr Ilrdlcnto lPcf'lbt'lnoncr

In thc ycar undcr
rwiew, the fund
had a total of 195
million at its
disposal to issue
out as loans
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a

a

generated by the
fund

reports wcll on
time as per PFM
2012 guidelines

xlv

An
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Corporate Governonce Statcment

Number of board mceting held

As
nced
bei
the
&ro

a

the fi.rnd act and regulations, fund is supposed to hold a aboard meeting every month or on

ordinary rneeting while the two were extra ordinary meeting. The meetings wcre convened by
ir of the board and invitation done by the secretary. The main agenda of the meeting revolved
evaluation and award ofloans, preparation of quarterly reports, approval ofquartcrly and

financial reporls as well as award of loans to board membcrs together with any other
eln lssucs

rd mernbcrs attended most o[the mcetings and signed attendance list as well as attendance
regis r during the meeting

Succession plan

the fund Act and Regulation of 20 l8 and 2019 respectively, a aboard member is nominated
by County executi?e committee member responsible for finance and appointed by H.E the
G r for a period of3 years and thc conh"ct can be renewed. As such upon the expiry at the end
of3 rs, the CEC Finance can cause to bc renewed such contract and ifnot the position is declared

and new recrui(ment done by Busia County Public Service Board

Exlstence of boord charter

A$

Th fund does not have a charter. However, is operations are guided by Busia County Public
offi rs Revolving Fund Act, 201 8, and enabling Regulations 20 l9

Process of appolntment and removal of board members

tion 9 of the Busia county Public Oflicers Revolving Fund establishes the officer's bearers to
the board as Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Chief officer Finance, Chief officer Public
Se ce Board and two othcr board members

lation 9 of the same act provided mcchanisms for appointment of the oflicer's bearers as;

(a) The County Public Service Board shall competitively sourcc qualified and cxperienced
pe

bcrs of the Board

(b Sbortlist not less than three candidates in respect of the chairperson and not more than seven
dates in respect efthe other members

(c) Submit the names to the Executivc Comrnittcc Mernber for nomination.

During the ycar of audit 202212023, the fund hcld a total of 14 meeting with twclve

who are not public oflicers for nomination and appointment as Chairperson and the
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Governor shall appoint the chairperson and the three members of the Board referred to in
(l) (d) of the Act:

ominating persons for appointment as chairperson and or member of the Board, the
e Committee Member shall take into account the need for gender balance and

repres tation of the youth and persons with disability

Induction and training

B usia
Annu

(d) e Executive Committee member shall nominate one person for the position of the
chai on and three others for the position of members of the Board and submit to the Governor
for ap r ntrncnt

(e) Th
section

(f) ere the Governor declines to appoint a nominee the Executive Committee Member shall
nol'n I na another person liom the shortlist submitted to him or her under paragraph (l)(a) ofthis
regulati t1

Upon
them

a

cruitment of tund members, the fund organizes an induction meeting fbr new to on-board

Ethics and Conduct as well as governance audit

uct of its activities, the board in guided by the set out rules and regulations provided by
itution, Public Finance Management Act 2012. Fund Act and Regulations,20l5.

Board and member performance

Allbo members participate actively during board meetings. In the event of a decision to be
made b voting, the act provides that majority of members will carry the day excluding the chair

Conflict of interest

d act and regulations provide that in the event a conflict of interest a board member
should eclare his or her interest and exclude him/herself from such meeting

Board Ilemuneration

Thc F
thc rate

d board members are remunerated in tbrm of sitting allowances. The rates are based on
provided by salaries remuneration commission

o

a

a

In c
the con

xvl

(g)ln
Executi

The

a



InterestQuartcr Principal

201,65 I .84Ql . 6,562,021
286,723.44Q2 2,281,705.95

s20,487Q3 4,001, r 99.84

1,019,864.?5Q4 5,603,621.01

2,028,727.03'fo(al 18,448,547.8

rl

u Couuty (Pablic Ouicers') Revolvhtg FundIJ

A

In financial year 2022/2023, trventy-six officcrs applicd for the Car loans and Mortgagc.

ual Ilc ort and Financirl Statements for the yeer endcd June 30' 2023

0. Managcment Discusslon and Analysls

u r,23 officers rverc awarded loans amounting rol93 million. Out of the 23 oflicers, 3

received both car loans and mortgage. Out ofthe 193 million shillings disburscd, l8offi
nril on were car loans while 175 million wcrc mortgage.

fuod was unable to collect repayments from two bencficiaries amounting to khsh
5,0 3,436.14 whose contracts were terminated by the County Govemment. However, dte
nla gement is still following up

Int of performance, repaymcnts were rvell donc on timc fi'otn the county payrotl. Total of
Ks 18,448,547.80 rvas recovercd as principal while interest amounted to Ksh. 2,028,?27.50

Quartely Principal And lnterest Repayemnts

6

5,

4,

1.

2,

1,

,000

,oo0

,oo0

,000

,000

,000

000

0
qjo2 Q4

I

r Prlncipal r lnterert

xvt I
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10. Bnvironnren tal and Sustainability Reporting

Sustalnablltty strategy and proflte -

Busia County Public Officers Revolving Fund as the name suggest is a revolving fund
which advances loans to public officers. Upon repayment of the loans, the fund again
awards thosclepayments to other officers and the cycle continues. As such the fund is ible
to self-sustain itself. This has been the case since the inception oflthe fund.
To fund its operations, it relies on budgetary allocation appropriated by the county
assembly. ln tinancial yeer 202212023, the fund received a rotal of ksh 150 million.
since the main sourcc ofths fund is the county budget, it poses a potential risk when ofthe
fund is not allocated rcsources.

Environmen tal performance

The fund has embraced cnvironmentally friendly activities. Most of the activities are done
on a papcrless basis. To guide its operarions with regard to obsolete asset disposals, the
fund rvorks with the county directorate of supply chain Management and has adopted
Public procurement and Disposal Act of 2015. It also laisscs with the directorate of
Environment which enforces the Environmental Management and coordination Act of
2015(Amendcd)

Employee welfare

Employment, promotion and termination employment of the fund staff both board
members and pennanent staff is done by Busia county Public Service Board undcr public
service board and county Human Resource manual of20l6. Staff are to be promoted after
every 3 years. This is after job evaluation and appraisal done by the same board in
conjunction with Busia County Public Service Managemetrt atrd administration.
Terms of erllployment as well as benefits are guided by salaries and Remuneration
Commission.

Recruitment of Board rnembers is contained in the Busia county public officers revolving
Fund Act 201 8 and its enabling regulations of 2019.

Market place practlces

I

The fund laisses with the county Treasury through the directorate of supply chain
management [o source for goods and services. In so doing the fund ensures that it is in
compliance with the set rules guiding acquisition of goods and services using public funds.
The Fund Act provides for penalties for officers or berreficiaries that engage in comrpt
sctivities while giving out loans.
Further, the fund conducts it activities in a confidential manner without causing prejudice
to the beneficiaries of its loans orthe fund activitics. Holever, all inlormation with regards
to the fund is ahvays made available to all interested parties when right channeli are

a

xvlll
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followed within the [aw. To create awareness about the fund, the board makes

presentations from timc to time to county staff. It has all circulated the fund acts and

iegulation to all departments upon which staff can familiarise wilh the fund activities

Corporate Sociat Responslblllfy / Communlty Engagem€nt!

In the year under review, the fund did not undertakc any corporatc socisl responsibility,

however as way of giving back to the society the fund envisions to undcrtakc thc same

activitics in thc forthcoming financial year.

a

I

xlx
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ual ort and Finrncial Statcnrents for the ear ended Junc 30, 2023

l. Report of Thc Fund Board Membe rs
Fund Board Members submit their rcport together with thc audited financial statements for the
ended June 30,2023 which show the state ofthe Fuud affairs.

Thc

o
S

Res

The restrlts of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2023 are set out on page I

in the service of the Busia County Govemment, other than those in the County Assembly

cipal activitics

principal activity of the fund is to mobilise resources and create a pool of funds that Public

ce, may access car and mortgage loans

Itr

The
Boa

members ofthe Board wlro served during the year are shown on page viii. The changes in the
during the financial ycar are as shown below

Au Itors

Auditor General is rcsponsible for the statutory audit of the Fund jn accordance with ArticleThe
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and fte Public Audit Act 201 5

By rder of th oard

d Adntinlstration Comnrittec

a
t)

STN o STATUSNANTE t POSITION

I Secretary New/ OnboardTnrphenah Akide

, Contact ExpiredMartin Sikolia Secretary

3 OnboardMercy Imo Member

4 Vice-Chair Contract ExpiredNancy Dalla

Contact ExpiredClementina 0motto Mcmbcr

III

xx

5.

Fu



B
A

S

County (Public Ofliccrs') Revolving Fuud
ual ort and Financial Statcments for the ear ended June 30, 2023

2. Statement of Management's Responsibllltles
on 167 of the Public Finance Management Act, 20 l2 requires that, at the end of each financial
the Administrator of a County Public Fund established by Busia County Public Officers
lving Fund Act, 2018 shall prepare financial statements for the Fund in accordance widr the

The strator of dre County Public Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the
and

's financial sratements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Fund fior

at the cnd of the financial year ended on June 30,2023 This responsibility includes: (i)
adequate financial lnanagement arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

ve throughout dre reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which
disc
i'''p

with reasonable accuracy ot any time the financial position of the Fund; (iii) desigring,
ting and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

the cial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to
erro

ting policies; and (vi) making accounting estirnates that are reasonable in the circunstances

Thc Administrator of the County Public Fund acccpts rcsponsibility for the Fund's financial
sta ts, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by

e and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector
ng Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by ttre PFM Ac\ 2012 and Busia

c Public Oflicers revolving fund Act 2018). The Administrator of the Fund is of the opinion
Fund's tinancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Fund's transactionsthat

the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the Fund's financial position as at that date.
Thc dministrator further confinn thc completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Fund's financial statements as well asFun
the cy ofthe systems of intemal financial control

In ng the financial statements, the Administrator of the Busia County Public Officers'
Fund has assesscd the Fund's ability to continue as a going concem and discloscd as

appl le, maners '6lating to the use of going concem basis of preparation of the financial
sta ents

A val of the finuncial statcnlcnts

t financial statements were approved by the Board on oe tra I 2023 and
on by

A istrator of the Busia County Public Fund

s

Thc
sign

a

xxl

and formats prescribed by thc Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the Fund; (v) selecting and applying appropriate
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oF THE AUDTTOR-GENERAL ON BUSIA COUNTY (PUBLIC OFFICERS)
ING FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAM

I draw y

BLE

B

our attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

A. Re ort on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
a unting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on he financial statements

Retort on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
co4hpliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guiflelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
effifient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
acflieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

Refort on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
whiph considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
op(rations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
maftagement environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
ch{rged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

lnodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
frt laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
ance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
rder review.

fne tilree parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
respalsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
PubliC lFinance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
the re$ort when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

I

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l

Quatlded Opinion
I

I havelaudited the accompanying financial statements of Busia County (Public Officers)
Revolriing Fund set out on pages 1 to 40, which comprise of the statement of financial
positiln as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of

c

An unl
relevai
govem
year ul
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The statement of financial position reflects comparative balances for receivables from
exchange transactions and as disclosed in note 13 to the financial statments that were
not in agreement with the closing balances in the audited financial statements for the
financial year 202112022 as tabulated below:

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the above balances could not
be confirmed.

2. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Cashflow

The statement of cashflow reflects comparative balances that were not in agreement with
the closing balances in the audited financial statements for the financial year 202112022
as tabulated below:

Report of the Auditor-General on Busia County (Public Officers) Revolving Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Item

Audited Balances
202112022

(Kshs.)

Comparative
Balances

2022t2023
(Kshs.)

Variances
(Kshs.)

Current Loan
Repayment Due

11,808,669 11,314,202 494,467

TotalCurrent
Receivables

34,268,1 10 33,773,642 494,468

Long Term Loan
Repayment Due

17,275,701 15,029,043 2,246,658

Total Receivables
from Exchange
Transactions

5 1 ,543,811 48,802,685 2,741,126

changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget
and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a surnmary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Busia County ( Public Officers) Revolving Fund as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act,2012, and the Busia County ( Public
Officers) Revolving Fund Act, 2018.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. lnaccuracies in the Statement of Financial Position



Variances
(Kshs.)Descr ption

Audited Balances
202112022

(Kshs.)

Comparative Balances
2022t2023

(Kshs.)

21 ,010,909
22,124,692 (1,113,783)Proceeds from Loan

Principal Repayment
Net Cash Flow Used in
lnvestinq Activities 1 1,510,909

12,624,692 (1,1 13,783)

Net lngrease/Decrease
in Cash and Cash
Equivdlent

4,904,582
6,018,365 (1 ,1 13,783)

ln the rcumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the above balances could not
be conf rmed.

ccuracy in Comparative Figures for Net Assets and Liabilites

rted in the report of the previous year, the statement of financial postion as at

3. ln

30 Jun ,2022, reflected a balance of Kshs.66,014,225 in respect of net assets which
As re

differed
reflecte
vananc

from the balance of Kshs.62,808,732 in respect of net assets and liabilities
in the same statement. No explanation or reconciliation was provided for the
of Kshs.3,205,493 between the two balances which should have balanced since
re no liabilities. The variance has not been resolvled in the financial statements

for the ear ended 30 June, 2023

ln the Qircumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the respective comparative
balances could not be confirmed.

4. Unsupported Depreciation Expense

The staiement of financial performance reflects depreciation and amortization expense
amount of Kshs.103,972 as disclosed in Notes 8 and 17 to the financial statements.
Howevgr, the accounting policy including the method and rates of depreciation applied in
depreci{ting property, plant and equipment have not been disclosed in the financial
statemdnts.

I

ln the ;circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the depreciation and
amortizdtion expense amounting to Kshs.103,972 could not be confirmed.

i

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lristitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Busia County (Public Officers)
Revolviitg Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have
fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with
other e(hical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide h basis for my qualified opinion.

e Auditor-General on Busia County (Public O/Jicers) Revolving Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
3
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ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
Financial Statements. Management has indicated that some of the issues have been
resolved while some have not. No explanation was provided on why the unresolved
issues have not been resolved as required by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board reporting template.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavvfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Failure to lnsure Property and Motor Vehicles Financed by the Board

The statement of financial position reflects Kshs.53,365,787 and Kshs.154,145,7'15 as
the current portion of long-term receivables from exchange transactions and long-term
receivables from exchange transactions respectively, as disclosed in Note 13 to the
financial statements.

However, no evidence was provided to confirm that the Board had insured the loans as
prescribed in Regulation 37(1) of the Busia County (Public Officers) Revolving Fund
Regulations, 2019, which states that every loan granted under the Act and these
Regulations shall be insured by the Baord for the benefit of the County and premiums in

respect of the insurance cover be debited to the account of the loanee. No evidence was
also provided to confirm that the loanees had taken comprehensive insurance cover for
the motor vehicles whose purchase had been financed by the loans as well and mortgage
protection policy and fire policy for the property purchased using the loan money, thereby
subjecting the Fund to the risk of loss of its Funds should risk of non-repayment
crystallize.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Busia County (Public Oficers) Revolving Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters



REPO T ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANA EMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Concl sion

As req
proced
believe

rhired ny Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
qres performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

The au it was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
requrre that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
proce es and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operati g effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtaine is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Managqment is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln prep'
Fund's i

to susti
Manage

pring the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
hbility to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
pinability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
fment is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease its operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor.,General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addilion to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statemlnts described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activitieS, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied ln an effective way.

Those Charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reportin
complia

process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors
ce with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective

process s and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation
to gove ance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of
the con

Auditor-General on Busia County (Public Olficers) Revolving Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
5

rf

I
I

Basis r conclusion

lenvironment.

Report



Auditor-General's Responsibil ities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high levelof assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1Xa)of the PublicAuditAct,20l5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Report of the Auditor-General on Busia County (Public Officers) Revolving Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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I

a Eval ate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
a unting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
existS related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
repoft. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

a

o Evalt
inclur
unde

Obta
busin

[ate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

[ing the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
lrlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

fn sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
less activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

a

a Perfoirm such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.
I

lnicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

f O of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

f 

l controls that are identified during the audit.

I also pr vide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requrre ents regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships

r matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where a plicable, related safeguards

lcommu
and timir
in internz

and ot

FCPA
AUDIT

Nairobi

2024ty17 Janu

CBS
-GENERAL

Auditor-General on Busia County (Public O/ficers) Revolving Fundfor the yeor ended 30 June, 2023
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Rer enuc F'rom Non-Exchange Transactlons

Pub lic Contributions and Donations I

Trar 2sfers From the County Govemment

Fint s, Penalties and Other Levies 3

Rerenue From Exchange Transactlons

Inte 4 2,028,127.50 l,401,019.36rcst Income

Oth 5r Ilcome

Tot 2,028,727.50 1,401,019.36rl Revenue

ErI
Eml

ens es

rloyee Costs a 6

Usc of goods and services 7,469,800

Der reciation and Amortization Expcnse 8 t03,972.t5

Fini mce Costs I
Tot 7,469,800rl Expenscs 6,496,502.r5

Otlr ,er Gains/Losscs

Gai n/l,oss on Disposal of Assets l0

Gair t /Loss on fair value of investments ll
Surplus/(Deflclt) for the Period (4,467,774,65)

B
A

a County (Public OfJicers') Revolviug Fund
ual R ort and liinancial Statemcnts for the ar endcd Junc 30, 2023

a

4. Statement of Flnancial Performance for the Year Ended 30th June 2023

(llt ,toles t pag* 9 to 40form an inlcgral parl of these Financial Statements)

c.

Ne

Ad inistrator of the Fund

Nsme: {Erl*At^ r.\ qort e.
Fund Accountant

)

a

2{J22-202J

Krhs

t02 t,.202:
Nolc

7 6,392,530.00

(6,068,780.64)



Bus ou ttt), (Public Officers') Revolving Fund
IteAnn ort and Financial Statements for the ear ended June 30, 2023

15. s tement of Financial Position As at 30 .Iune 2023

Asse

('ur :nt Asscts

t2 9.074.226.10 14.470,414.30('ash and Cash liquivalcnts
Curr
Flxcl ll 53,365,786.98 34.268,110

nt Portion ofLong- Term Receivables From
u:ge Transactions

l-1Prep vrnents

l5Inrc tories

Inve .ments in tlnancial assets l6

Tot I cu rrent assets 62,{{0,01-1.08

Non Surrcnt Assets

Prop rty, Plant and Equipment t7 334.920.25

I ntar ;ible Asscts Iti

[,on1 Term Receivables fiom Exchange Transactions r3 154.145.714.52 17.275.701.08

Inv ;tment Property l9
'l'ot: non- current asscts I 5-1,.180,6-1,1.77 17,275,701.08

2 r 6,920,6{7.85 66,01,{,225.38-l'o 
tr Asscts

Lial litics

Cur ent Liabilities

8.579.6e0.38Trad :and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions

2tCu nt Portion ol Borrowings
))Emr oyee Benefi t Obligations

Soc I benefit liabilities 23

8.s79.690.38Totr current Iiabilitics

Non Current Liabilitics
l,on Term Portion of Borrowings 2t

Non Current Ernployee Beneflt Obligation 22

Soc .l bcncflt liabilitics _-1

'fotr ll,iabilities ti.579.6e0.38

)

____?!41!]2
Kshs

Note l- 3220
.,

2 20

Kshs

20
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R
A

'a County (Public Oflicers') Revolviug Fund
uel ll,e ort and Finaucial Statenrents for the yeer ended June 30, 2023

T accounting policies and explanatory notes to tltcse financial statemen
of financial statemcnts. The entity finsncial statements were approved

e:ftpllc.unt{ lthOe Name: lERArl
Fund Accountant

r.\es:rt RNr
Ad inistrator of the Fund

ts form pn integral part
on o6ltal zozl

a

66,014,225.38208,340,957.47Net Assets

72,000,000.00222,000,000.00Revolving Fund

Res

(9, r9r,267.88)( 13,659,042.53)Acc umulated Surplus

a9rves

208,340,957.47 62,8081732.t2Tot rl Net Assets rnd Llobilitlcs

l

a

signed by:

N22:242

KsLs
Desu'isti0n



Re

Ilal
202

0.00 -3,122,487.24 68,877,512.76mce As At I July
I

72,000,000.00

Su4
Yea

tlud(Deficit) For the
r

0.00

Fun
the '

0.00 0.00ls Received During
fear

0.00

Trar 0.000.00 0.00 0.00rsfers

Rcv 0.00 0.00 0.00aluation Gain 0.00

Brlr
202,

0.00 -g,l9l,267.88mce As At 30 Jurre
t

72,000,000.00

BaI
202,

0.00 -9, t 9l,267.88 62,808,732.17rnce As At I July
I

72,000,000.00

SurF
Perir 4457,n4.650.00 0.00 4,467,774.65

luJ@eficit) For the
s

Funr
Year 150,000,000.00 0.00 150,000,000.00

ls Received Durintg thc

Tran 0.000.00 0.00 0.00sfers

Revi 0.00rluation Gain 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bals
2011 208J40,9s7.47222,000,000.00 0.00 -13,659,042.53

6. Statement Of Chan cs in Net Assets for the ear ended 30(h June 2023

As At 30 June

Fund: Money appropriated by the Cou,rty Assembly and disbursed by lhe County treosury
for the lo advance as loans

4

a

{ccurDulrtcd
iurpluV Ueliclt

krhr

Rcvulurrt 
I

Ksht

n

T

lonDrscrlntlou
Ilcvofvlng

0.00 -6,068,780.64 -6,068,780.64

0.00

62..808,732.12

0.00



unty (Public OfJicers') Revolving Fund
Ann Report and Financial Statements for the year cnded June 30,2023

Statement of Cash Florvs for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

('asl florvs from operating activities

Recr pts

)\Rec 'eries flor loans for County Assembly Staff 20 474,723.45

'l'ra 
rr r50.000.000.00lers frorn the county government

Inter st received I t.487.097.99 863.473 .91

Rect
payr

pts frorn other operating activities ( Unremitted
ll deductions)-for the (202112022 fly) 2r,921.895.00

Tota receipts 173,883,716..1{ 863.17J.91

Pavr ents

Fun< admin istration expenses 7 6,392.510.00 7.469.800.00

(ietrr al expenses

I- ina ]e cost

Othi payments

Nct 167,.191 ,I tt6.,l{rsh flows from operating activitics (6,606,326.09)

Casl florys fronr invcsting activities

ase of property, plant, equipment and

lible assets (418,893.00)

Proc eds from sale of properry, plant & equipment

Proc eds fiom loan principal repa)'ments 15,341,5 18.37 22,124,691.90

Loar ( r87,790,000) (9.s00.000.00)disbursements paid out

Net rsh IIous used in investing activitics (172,887 ,371.63) 12,621,691.90

Cas f'lows from financing activities

Proc eds fiom revolving Iund rcceipts

Add ional borrowings

I{ep rment of bonowings

ash flows used in financing activities

Net

Equ

rc rease/(decrease) in cash & cash

u alents (5,396,I f]8.20) 6,0 r 8,J65.00

5

, Busio

l7

2022-21123 202t-2022
l)escriptiorr Notc

Kshs KshsI

Purcl
lntanl

Net c



t

B County (Public Officers') Revolving Fund
and Financial Statements for tho cnded June 2023

dttlt nrcood csih flo\v prrscntation accnral

ksh 474,723.45 represents money thal was elroneously credited to the fund account ollicent
serving in the county assembly and transitioncd to the county executive as well as from
the t'und had not advanced a loan toan

a

8,452,M8.50t4,470,4r4.30at I Julycash

I9,074,226,10ulvalents at 30 Junecash

I
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N
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Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended Junc 30, 2023

18. Statement Of Comparison Of Budget And Actual Amounts For The Period

Itcvcnuc

Interest Income
2.028.727 2.028.727 2.028.727 100%

Total Incomc
2,028,727 2,1128,727 2,028,727

100%

Expenses

Use of Goods and Services
1 .5 14.529 5.969.039 7..18 3.5 6 8 6.392.530

850h

Depreciation
103.972

Total Expenditure
1,51{,529 5,969,039 7.'-t8-3,568 6,{96,502

625,1J5 870h

Surplus For the Perind
5l -1,198 5,969,0-19 5,{5{,8-l I 1,167,775 625,1{5

820h

Transfers From Counfy
Govt. 30,000,000 120,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000

lll0"l,

Loans Disburscd
48,969,781 150,000,000 198,969,781 193,000,000 5.'969,711I

9701,

Budget notes

l. Underutilization on other income is 88.5'%. thefund did not receive all the loan repayments by end ofthefinancial year 2022-2023. for underut ilization of
6l% on general expenses, lhe monagemenl cut on its expenses so os to avail more resources to be given oul as loans which is ils core mandote

2. The managemenr did reallocalion during the financial year inlend-em with Busia County supplementary budget 2022/2023

7

Busio Countl' (Public OfJicers') Revoh'ittg Fund

Dcscriptio n

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs+f---_-_F____
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9. Notes to the Financial Statements
ncral Information

B County Public Officers' Revolving Fund is estabtished by and derives its authority and

bility from Busia County Public Officers' Revolving Fund Act of 2018 and enabling

lations of 2019. The fund is wholly owned by the Busie County Govcnrncot and is

ciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity ia o irrrr a loanl and mortgagc to

tatement of compliance and basls o[ preparatlon

Fund's financial statements have been prepared in accordancc with and comply with

rnational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statemcnts are

p ted in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the Fund. The

ting policies have been consistcntly applied to all the years presented. The financial

sta ments have beetr prepared on the basis ofhistorical cost" unless stated otherwise. The cash

statement is prepared using the direct method. The financial statements are prepared onflo

option of nerv and reviscd standards

(i) New and amended standards and interpretationr in ,ssre but no, ycl 6.ctive in the year
ended 30 June 2023

2.

Int

IPSAS 4l : Financial

InErunrents

I

Applicable: l3r January 2023

Thc objcctivc of IPSAS 4l is to establish principlcs for the financial

reporting offinancial assee and Iiabilities that will present relevant and

uscful information to users of financial statcmcnts for their assessment

of the amounts, timing and uncertaiaty of rn Entit3r'r fuhrrc cash flows.

IPSAS 4 I provides users of financial statcmenb with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Appllng a single classiflcation and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of thc asset's

cash flows and the objective lor which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model

8

l.

' serving in the executive arm.

basis.

3.

I Effcctivc dxtc ond lnrpactStIud8rd
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a

that is applicable to all financial ins0uments subjcct to

impairment testing; and

. Applying rn improved hcdge accounting model that broadens

thc hcdgi{ rmnscmcnts in scope of the guidance. The model

&vclops a st otrg link bctrvecn an Entity's risk management

strrtcgics and the accounting trcatment for instruments held as

part of thc risk rnanagcmcnt strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Boncfits

a

Appllcablel l" January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about social

bencfits. The information provided should help users of the financial

statemenE and gcncralaurpose frnancial reports asscss:

(a) The nature oflrcb rocid bcncfiu providcd by the Entity;

(b) Thc kcy features of thc opcration of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) Thc impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows'

Appllcable: I'i January 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk rvhich were inadvertently omitrcd when

IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for ltnancial Suarantee contmcts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

Amendments to Otler

IPSAS resulting from

IPSAS 41, Financial

Irlstruments

<)

a

l.lllect lv e dut e arrd lurplclStaudai r.l
I
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Olher improvemcnts

to IPSAS

a

a

financial instrumentrs on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Applicable 1" January 2023

o /PSI.S 22 Disclosure of Financial Inlormation aboul the General

Governmen! Sector.

Amcndmcnts to rcfcr to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA

2008).

c IPSAS 39: Enplol'ee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29t Financial instruments: Recognitlon and

Measurement

Standard no longer includcd in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by trSAS 4l which is applicable from l'r January 2023.

IPSAS 43

a

Applicable Id Januury 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recop.ition,

mq$uement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objcctivc is

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a

manner that faithfully represcnts those transactions. This

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess

the effect that leases have on the frnancial position, financial

performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofusc assets and lease liabilities.

Applicuble I't January 2025

The Standard requires,

l0

Strndmd I t-,ffc(tivr drlc ond Inrnqcl

(il) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet elfective in the year
ended 30 June 2023.

S lnnda nl E,lTcctlve drtc oud lrrrplct:

IPSAS 44: Non-

durent Assets Held
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for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

a

Assets that mect the criteria to be classified as hel

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

Asscts that meet the criteria to be classified as hcld for sale to be

presentcd separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

d for sale to be

(iil)Early adoption of standards

The fund did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial ycar

l. Revenue from non-erchange transactiong

Transfers from othcr government entlties

Rcvcnues from non-exchangc transactions with othel govemmcnt entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if
the transfer is iree lrom conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service

potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably'

ll. Revenuc from exchenge transactlons

Irrterest lncome
a

Interest inconre is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

edimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the linancial asset to that asset's net

crrying amount. The method applics this yietd to the principal outstanding to dercrmine

interest income each period.

Dlvldends

Dlvidcnds or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's
riSht to receive payments is established.

Rrntal lncome

Rlntal income arising from operating, leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straigbt-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget lnformatlon

a

ll

Slgnillcant Accountlng Policies

a) Rcvenue recognltion
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a

a

b

original budget lor FY 202212023 was approved by the Busia County Public Officers

lving Fund Bourd. Subseq uetlt revisions or additional appropriations were made to the

budget in accorrdancc with spccific approvals frorn the appropriate authorities. The

itional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the

ve approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

entity's budget is prepar ed on a different basis to the acrual income and expenditure

sed in the financial statem ents. The financial statenlents are prepared on accrual basis

ng a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statcment of financid pcrfonDancc,

the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The anrounts in thc financid clalcm€ot8 wcrc

from the accnral basis to the cash basis and reclassified by prescnlation to bc oD thc same

8s the approvcd budget. A comParison of budget and actual amounts, prcpared on a
le basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of

and actual amounts

t

a

t2
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Summary of Signlficant Accounting Pollclcr (Continued)
a

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustmcnta to strlounts in thc financial statements are also

mrde for differences in the formats and clasrification schemes adopted for thc prcscntation of
thc Enancial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the achral amounts on a comparable basis iocluded in thc statement of
ccnparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per thc statement of financial
porformance has been presented undcr scction l8 ofthese financial statements.

c) Property, plant and equipmcnt

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cost irrcludes cxpenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
thr items. When significant pans of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

dqreciates thenr accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is

recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

recognition criteria are satisficd. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in
surplus or deficit as incuned. Whcre an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil
or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

d) Intangiblc Assets

lrtangible assets aqluired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial rccognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amoftization and accumulared impairment losses. Internally generated intangible asses,

excluding capitalized developrncnt costs, are not capitalizcd and expenditure is reflected in
surplus or deficit in the period in which the expendinuc is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as eithcr finitc or indefinite.

e) Investment property

Irryestment propeflics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

amount includes the replacement cost of components ofan existing investment property at the

timc that cost is incurred if the recognition critcria are met and excludes the costs ofday+o-day
rnaintenance ofan investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange

trBnsaction is measurcd at its fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent lo initial
rccognilion, inveslnent properlies are neasured using the cosl model and are depreciated over

ae 2 year period or irtvestment property is neasured al /air value with gains and losses

rccognised through surplus or deficit,(entity to auend approptiately) Investment properties

are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is

pcrmanently withdrawn from use and no future economic bencfit or service potential is

erpected from its dsposal. The dilference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset is recognized in tlte surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Summary of Slgnlllcant Accounting Pollcies (Continued)

t3



Busla County (Public Oflicers') Revolviug Funtl
Annual Rcp ort and Financial Ststements for the ycar ended June 30' 2023

t) Financial instruments

IPgAS 4 I addresses rhe classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and

I'inoncial liabilities, introduces ncw rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. I/re entity does nol have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no in\act on the Conpany's financial slatemenls. (amend as

appropriate). A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one

entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. At initial recognition, the

cntity measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fail value plus or minus, in the case

ofa financial Bsset or financial liability not at fair value tlrrough surplus or deficit, transaction

colts that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuc of the financial asset or financial

liability.

Fltanclal assets

Chssillcation of firlancial assets

Thr entity classifics its Iinancial assets as subsequently nreasurcd at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ cquity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both the

cn$ty's managemcnt model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is

held within a nlanagement model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

cotrtractual cash flows and tlte contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specilied

dates io cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measurcd at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the mlnagement model whose objective is achieved by both collecting cootractual

ca3hJlows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specifie{ dates ro cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest on the

prlncipal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless

an entity has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity

intmlments.

Subsequent measurem€nt

Blscd on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

as3ets into amortizdJ cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

vdlue are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

crltcria being met.

l4

a
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Summary of Significant Accountirrg Policies (Continued)

Anortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collcction of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that arc not designated at fair value

tluough surplus or dcficit, arc measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is de-r'ecognized or impaired. Interest income from
thcse financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value througb.net assets/ equity

Financial asscts that arc hcld for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through nct assets/ cquity. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surpluVdcficit.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income uing lhc cfhctive
interest rate method.

f-clr value through surplus or deflcit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for arnortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business modcl whcrc thc cntity
menages financial a,ssets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale olthe
a$ets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other reccivables :ue recognized at fail values lcss allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An
estimate is rnade of doubtful receivables based on a rcvicw of all outstanding amounts at the
year end. a

Impairrnent

The entity assesses, on a forwardlooking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

wilh its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value tluough net assets/equity. The

entity recognizes a loss allowance lor such losses at each rcporting date. Critical €stimatcs and

significant judgments nlade by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out in Nole xx.

a
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Slgnlflcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fhrancial llabllities

Clacslflcation .
Tle entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently mcasurod d.Eortizcd cost cxccpt for

fiiancial liabilities nreasured through profit or loss.

g) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recogrrition. To the cxl,ent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), thc cost of thc
inventory is its fair value at the date ofacquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for,
as follows:

F Raw rnaterials: purchasc cost using thc wcigbted averagc cost mcthod

P Finished goods and work in progress: cost ofdirect materials and labour and a proportion
of manufach:ring overhcads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs

AAer initial rccognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizsble value.
However, to the extent tltat a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class ofinventory is measured at the lower ofcost and current replacement
cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofoperations, less

the estimatcd costs 6f complction and the estimated costs necesary to oeke thc sale, exchange,

or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expcnse wbcn drploycd fr utilization or
consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

h) l'rovisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a prcsent obligation (legal or constructive) as a

rosult ofa past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation. Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be

reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a

soparatc asset only when thc rcimbursement is virtually certair. The expense rclating to any
provision is prcsentcd in thc statement of financial performance net of arry reimbursement.

i) Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash (ransfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

meet the eligibility criteria, ii) mitigate the effects of social r.isks and iii) Address the need of
society as a whole. The entity recogniscs a social bcncfit as an expense for the social benefit

sohcme at the sarne time that it recognises a liability. The liability for thc social bencfit schemc

ig measured at thc bcst estimate of the cost (the social beneht paynents) that the entity will
iocur in fulfilling the present obligations represented by the liability.

a

[6
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

j) Contingent liabilitics

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies in
thc notes to the financial statements, unless the possibiliry of an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote.

Contltrgent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asse! but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future

errents not wholly rvithin 0te control of the Entity in the notes to the linancial statements.

Cgntingent assets are assessed continually to ensurc that developments are appropriately
rdlected in the linancial statements. If it has lgcoD. virot tly c.rtsh that u inllow of
emnomic benefits or service potential will arisc and thc rrci't vrluc ca be ocrsured reliably,
ttte asset and the relatcd rcvenuc are recognized in the financial statcments of the period in
which the change occurs.

a

k) Nature and purpose of rcserves

Tte Entity creates and maintains reserycs in tcrms of specific requirements. Entity to state the

r6serves maintainetl and appropriate policies adopted.

l) Changes ln accountlng pollcles and estimates

The Entity rrcognizes the effecs of changes in accounting policy rctrospectively. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is

inpractical.

m) Employee benefits - Retlrement benefit plans

The Entity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
phos are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributioos into a

soparste entity (a fund) and wilt have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund doe.s not hold sulficient asseB to pay all employee benefits relating to
etrtployee service in the current and prior pcriods. Thc conributions to fund obligations for the

ptyment of retirement benefits are charged agairut incomc in the year in which they become

Pryable.

Defined benefit plans are posr-employment benelit plans other than defined-contribution plans.

The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit
method basis. Deficits identified are rccovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump
sum payments reduce the post-employntent benefit obligation.

t7
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Srunuaty of Signiticant Accountiug Policies (Continuel)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Trusactions in foreign currencies are initiatly accounted lor at the ruling rate of exchange on

thc date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign culrency are

reported at the slatement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

tlut date. Exchange diffcrcnces arising frorn the scttlemcnt of creditors, or from the reporting
ofcrcditors at rates different from thosc at which they were initially recorded during the period'

arc recognized as inSome or expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrolvlng costs

BOrrowing costs are capitalized against qualifoing assets as part of property, plant and

eqripocnt. Such bonowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

aoquircd or constructed and borrowings have been incuned. Capitalization ceases when

cqlstruction of the asset is complete. Furthcr bon'owing costs are charged to the statcment of
financial performarce.

p) Related parties

Tle Ehtity regards a retated party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
inflividually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa.

N4embers of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEO and senior managers.

q) Cosh and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents cornprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call
aqd highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or [ess, which are

raadily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in
vllue. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

vtrious commercialbanks at the end of tlre financial year. For the purposes of these financial
ststements, cash an-d cash equivalcnts also include short term cash impress and advances to

sBthorised public officcrs and/or institutions which werc not surrendered or accounted for at

the end of the liuancial year.

a

t8

r) Comparatlve figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
rcconfigured to conform to the rcquired changes in presentation.
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Suotmary of Signilicant Accounting Policies (Contiuuel)

5. $lgnlficant judgntents and sources of estimatlon uncertainty

ThC preparation of athe Entity's financial statements 
. 
in conformity witb IPSAS rcquircs

mdEgcmellt to rnatJludgmenfu, estimates and assumptions 0rat rfrect tbc rportcd rmounts of
revcnues, expenses, asses and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingcnt liabilities, at the end

of fie reporiing period. However, uncertainty about these assumptiorrs and estimates could

re$rlt in outcomis tfiat require a matcrial adjustmcnt to the carrying sEount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Sote all judgements, estimates and assumptions made e.g.

a) Estlmates and assumptlons -
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncstafuty et

thC rcporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a matcrial adjustmcnt to tbc carrying

adounts of asscts and liabilities *ithin tt e next financial year, are described below' The Entity

baaed its assumptions and estimates on parametcrs available when the consolidated linancial

statements werc prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions abOut future

dcrelopments muy 
"lrunge 

due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond thc control

ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140.

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value lrorn disposal:

on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

susceptibiliry and adaptability to changes in technology and processes

which the asset is deployed

thc asset

to the asset

i) Provlsions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx'

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settlc

the obtigation at 0re reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is

material.
a
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(lnClude provisions applicablefor your organisation e.g provisionlor bad debts, provisions of
oblolete stocks and how ,nanagement estimales these provisions)

6. Notes To Thc Financlal Statements

l. Publlc contributlons and donations

(Provide briel explanation for this revenue)

2. Transfers from County Government

3, Flnes, penaltlcs and other levies

vide brief explanation for this revenue)

4. Interest income

a

Donation From Development Partners

Contributions Fromtthe Public

Total

Tnansfers Fronr County Govt. -Operations

Payments By County On Behalf Of Thc Entity

Unconditional Development grants

late Payrnent Penafties

Fines

Total

t,35s,'?79.25t,75t,428.07 5Intcrcst Inconre fronr Mortgage Loans

45,240.t1277,299.25lutercst Incomc Fronr Car Loans

Ittcrcrt Income From Investments in financial
arscts

20

)tEN,

I
101?_4:

Kshr
'lttrrtIt

Descrlptiol

,y?y:
Krhi

r'l

Total



Brcla Cour
Annual Re

rty (Public
port and.F

OJrtccrs') Ilavol vi ng Ii u u d
inancial Statements for the Ycar cnded June 30, 2023

1,401,019.362,018.-727.50'I'otul Interest lncomt:

Intcrcst lncorne On Bank Dcposits

Fi Oflicers' received car loan which yielded a interest of Ksh. 277,299.43 while the rest

reaelved ntortgage lhat yielded an intere of Ksh. I '751 ,423.07 5

Notes to the Flnancial Statements Continued

5. Other income

All income should be classified as far as possible in the releva, classes a d olher inconte should

be used to recognise lcome nol elsetlrcrc classified. Disclose wri
witc o;fs).

6. Employee Costs

7. Use of Goods and Services

te backs i! any or recoveries lrom

Insurance Recoveries

Bad debts recovered

Miscellaneous Inconre

'l'otal Other Inconrc

Salaries And Wages

StaffGratuity

Staff Training Expenses

Social Security Contribution

Other (SpeciJy)

eral Office Exlftnses

[.oan Processing Costs

Professional Services Costs

Administration Fees

7,277,4005,102,100ttee Allowances

2t

t022-2023

lncome from Sale of Tender Documents

2022-2023

Krhr

'fotal

l)crcrillIlon ?!ryZy!
Kshs.
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Fuel And Oil Coss

rance Costs

Total

Social benelit schenres hclude bencfls such as cosh lranslers for unemploynrent or elderly in ltne with

IPSAS 42

& Depreclation aod Amortizstion Expense

9. Flnance costs

10. Galn/(loss) on disposal of asscts

2,400ChargesB

Elcctricity And Water Expenses

30,00010,000

PctaSe And Courier
t 50.000.00330,000ting And StationeryP

Rental Costs

Seurity Costs

Telephone And Communication Expcnses

Purchase of assets

Audit Fees

Provision For Doubrful Debts

931,400I Iospitality

Social benefit expenses*

7,469,8006,392,530.00

t03,972.15tnIP tan dan u c,IIIEq peny

Intangible Assets

103,972.151'otal

Interest On Bank Overdrafts

Interest On Loans From Banks

Total

22

201?-2011- k;'.;..Dorcrlutlon

19,030

o 2022-2023
Dctcrlullon

2022-2023

Krlts.

2012-2021'-.'-*--..-
Kshr

Dercriptlon
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Couttty (Public OfJicers') Ilevolvitrg Fund
ort and Financial Statements for the ear ended June 30, 2023

Galn/ (loss) on Fair Value Investments

12. Cash and cash cquivalents

usl R

I

,

Property, Plant and f.guipnrent

Inbngible Asses

Total

vesbnents at Fair Value- Equity investments
tir value - Investrnent prorrerty

lir value- other financial assets (specify)
otal Gain

Busia County Car Loan Account

ia County Mortgage AccountBus

Fixed Deposits Account

On - Call Deposits

Current Account

9,074,226.t0 14,470,414.30Busia County Public Officers' Revolving Fund

14,470,414.30Totsl Cash And Cash Equivalents

23

,P:arj
Krhs

Dcscrlptlon

9,074,226.10
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Busiu County (Public OfJicers') Revolvittg Fund
Annual Rcport and Financial Statcments for the ycar endcd June 30,2023

13. Rcceivables from exchange transactlons

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

a

a) Flxed Deposlts Account
Kenya Commercial Bank

Equity Bank, Etc

Sub- Total

a
b) On - Call Deposits

Kcnya Comn:crcial Bank

Equity Ban-k - Etc.

Sub-'l'otal

c) Currerrt ,\ccount
9,074,226.10 t4,4'70,4t4.30Co-opcrativc Bank 0l141239079100

Bank B Busia

14,470,4t4.30Sub- 'I otal 9,074,226.10

d) Othe rs(Specify)

Cash In Transit

Cash In l-Iand

Sub- Total
14,470,4t4.309,074,226.10Grand'l'otal

Current Receivables

537,545.45r 69,585.32Intclest Rcceivable

|,314,202.0250,803,39 t .66Current Loan Repayments Due

2t,92t,894.752,392,810.00Otrer Exchange Debtors (Unrenrittcd payroll deductions)

Less: lmpairment Allowance

33,773,642.2253J6s,786.98Total Current Rccelvables

Non-Current Receivables

15,029,043.1 6t54,t45,714.52Long Term Loan Repaynrcns Due

154,145,714.52 t 5,029,043. r 6Total Non- Curreut Recelvables

48,802,685.38Totel Receivables From Erchange Transactions 207,5t 1,50t.50

24

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Detailed analysis ofthe cash and cash equivalents arc 8s follows:

F lnanclal Irutllutloi Accoun( nuntbet

2022-202

l(shr
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Busia Counqt (Public Olficers') Revolving Fund
ort and l'inancial Statemen ts for thc esr ended Junc 30, 2023

Additional disclosu re on interest recdvsblc

t 4. Prepaymcnts

15. Inventories

Notes to the Financial Statcments Continued

ual

a

Reccivablc

ivable froln current portion of long+erm
loans of previous years

Accrued
prwious

intercst receivable frorn of long-term loars of
years

lnterest receivable frorn cunent portion of Iong-teml
lorns issued in thc cunent year

Curreut loan reprynrents due

Currcnt portion of long-temr loans frorn prcvious years

Aocnrcd principal from long-terms loans from previous
pcfiods

rtion of long+erm loans issued in the current
yesr

Prcpaid Rent

Prcpaid Ltsurance

Prepaid Electricity Costs

Othcr Prepayments dpec$\
talTo

able StoresConsum

Parts And Mcters

Catering

Otber Inve ntories (Spcci&)

Totrl Inventories at The Lolver of Cost and Net Reallzable
Value

25

)cr c rlpt ion

2022-20t3

Krht
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Busia CounE (Public Officers') Revolvitrg Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

16. Investmcnts ln flnancial assers
a

(Ettig should disclose whethcr lhe lred iuvestnetl Jinancial assets are neasurcd at anorlised cost or at lair
voLte lhrough changes in ct assels/ equity) lnvestnents in equity shotld be neasured at lair value through
sutplus or de/icil. Olher infurmalion to be disclosed includes: the interesl rates, nruturity dates, valuolion
ndhodolog4 atd impaintent of these hpestne ls.

ovemcnt of Equity Investments

e) Shareholding fut other entities
For investntenls itt eq,tity share lisled above, list down the eguity investntents under the

ng categories

I

Invcstnlent in Trcssu ry bills rnd bonds
F lnstitution
CBK
CBK
Sub- total
b. Investrnent !vitl! Fluanclal Institutions/ Banks

Bank x
Bank y
Sub- total
c. Equlty Invcstments (spccifv)

Equ!ry/ shares in Entity xxx
Sub- total
Grand total

-

At the beginning of thc year
[ru rchase of investnrents in the year
Sa le of iqvcstments during the year

Gaio(loss) in fair value of invcstnrents tluough surplus or deficit
AT the end of thc vcar

v, o,/ Kshs Kshs Kshs
Entity A
Entity B
Enlity C

-

26

l.

Nsnr$ 0l' Entit!
Ivhcrc
lnvcs(ltcn( 11
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Busia County (Public Offrcers') Revolving Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes To The Financial Statemen8 (Continued)

17. Property, plant and equipment

af

At l" July 2021

Disposals
Transfers/Adi ustments

At 306 June 2022
At Ir'Julv 2022
Additions 222.893.00 2r 6,000.00 438,893.00
Disposals
Transfer/Adiustmens
At 30't June 2023 222,893.00 2r6.000.00 438.893.00
Depreciation And Impairment
At ls July 2021

Dcprcciation
lmpairment
At 301h June2022
At 7d July 2022
Dcprcciation (31,6r2.15) (72,360.00) (t 03,972.15)
Disposals

Impairment
Transfer/Adi ustment

(3r.612.1s) 02.360.00)At 30'h June 2023 (103,972.1s)

Net Book Values
At 30tr June 2022

19rr80.25 I43,640.00 334920.2sAt 30th June 2023

27

FrL.

,L[rl 3Oo/"
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Dulia County (Public O.fiicars') Revolving fi'und
Anlnrl Report end Financlel Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Noles To The Fingncial Statements (Continued)

I8. lntanglble assets

Cost

At Begln nlng of Tlo Year

A ons

At End of The Year

Amortization And lmpairntcnt

nning of The YearAt
Arnortization

At End ofThe Year
Impairment Loss

At End of The Year

NBV

19. Investnrent Property

At beglnnirrg of the ycar

Additions

rduriD the

Dopreciation

lmpairment

Grin/(loss) in fair value (if fair value is e lected

At end of the year

0

28

a

?!.?]:?923
Kshs
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Buia Counq (Public Officers') Revolvittg Fund
Annusl Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Noles To The Financlal Statements (Continued)

20. Trade and other payablcs frr.rm cxchrnge transactions

: Amount under deposits and retenlions should tie to cash held in deposit accotutt)

21. Provisions

a

T Pa bles

474,723.45

Accrued Expenses 8,104,966.93

Other Payables

8,579,690.38Total Trade and Other Payables

Currcnt
FY

7o of the
Total

Comparatlve
FY

7o of the
Total

Agelng analysls (Trade and other
payables)

%

/o /ol -2 years

one year

% %2- years

%Owr 3 ycars

Total (de to above toral)

Balance At the Beginning Of The Year

Additional Provisions

Provision Utilised
Ctange Due To Discount And Time Value
Fo,r Money

Tansfers From Non -Current Provisions

Brlance At The End of The Year

2022-2023

Kshs
I
I

)g,

Refundabte Depositi

l ziv, I Bonus I orhei
lnrovlslon lorovlrlor
r Kshr I x.t.

o l. lol



Bola Couuty (Prtblic OlJicers') Revolving Fuul
Annual Report and Financial Statemcnts for thc yenr ended June 30,2023

Noter To The Flnanclal Statements (Contlnued)

22. llorrorvings

The table below shows the classification of borrowings into external and domestic borrowings

The table below shows the classification ofborrowings long+erm and current borrowings

'I'otal

the tota! of this stu,ene l should lie lo nole 22 brals. Current Porlio of borrovings are those borrowings

that are payable vithin one year or the trcrl Jinancial year. Add\io al disclosures o tenns of botowings, nature

olborrowirtgs, securiy,anl inlerest rutes should be disclosed). Borros,ittgs should be neasured at anorlised cosl

ar pu IPSAS 4l)

t

Balance At Bcginning of The Period

Extemal Borrowings During the Year

Dqnestic Borrowings During the Year

Repayments Of Extcrnal Borrowings During the

Pedod

Repayments Of Domestics Borowings During the

Period

Balance At End of The Pcriod

External Borrowings

Dollar Denominated Loan Fronr 'X Organization'

Sterling Poturd Denominatcd Loan Frorn 'Y
Organization'

Euro Denomiruted Loan frorn Z Organization'

Kenya Shilling Lo

Domesti c Borrowin
all From KCB

Kcnya Shilling Loan fronr Barclays Bank

Kcnya Shilling Loan h'om Consolidated Bank

Bonowings From Other Government lnstitutions

Total Bahnce at End of The Year

Short Ternr Borrowings (Cunent Portion)

Long Term Borrowings

30

tescllotlon
2r)22-2023

Kshso

I)crcrlollon
2072-2021

Kshs '

t02t-20x2

Krhr,

?0?L2!21
Kshs-.

Dcrcrlption
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Blroia County (Public OJficers') Revolving Fund
Aonual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes To The Flnanclal Ststements (Continued)

23. Employce bencfit obllgations

24, Social Benefit Liabilities

Sdclal beneJit schemes include benefits such as cash tanskrs /or unemployntent or elderly in line wlth
IrelS 42. They are inamed to miligate agairst a certain social "isk e,g poverty, age, unemploymenl
attong olhers.

tl

Kshs Kshs KshsKshs Kshs
Currcnt Benefit
Obligation
Non4urrent
Bcnefit Obligation
Total

Health social benefit schcmc

Unemployment social benefit scheme

Orphaned and wlnerable benefit scheme

Elderly social bcnefit schcme

a
social benefits

TotBl

Current social benefits

Non- current social benefits

Total (tie to totals above)

3l

h
Deflncd
bcncflt

I Post

lcmploymcn
I t medlcul Other

Itmvisiout

[)oscliptiorr

DlIn bcncfits

2072-2023

Kshs
D0scrlotion



Bwla County (Publlc Ollicers') Revolving Fund
Annual Report snd Financial Statements for the ycar ended June 30,2023

Notes To The Flnancial Statements (Continucd)

25. Cash generated from operations

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activitics

a

Surplus/ (Deficit) F or the Ycar Bcfore Tax (4,891,581.25) (6,068,780.64)

Adjusted For:
Depreciatiou 88,885.75

Amortisation

Gains/ Losses On Disposal Of Assets

Interest Inconre 2,028,727.50

Worklng Capltal Adjustmcnts

Incrcasc In Receivables 157,59 1,954.05

t62,719,107.50 36,253,779.91

32

t)$crln tio.
2022,2023

Krhs '.

( r,40 r,019.36)

Finance Cost

Increase In Inventory

3't,654,199.?7

1 ,901,'72t.45Increase ln Payabler
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Butia County (Public Oficers') Revolvingftutd
Antuol Report and Financial State ents For lhe )'ear ended 3(ltt June 2023

Notec To The Flnanclal Ststements (Contlnued)

26. Rehted psrty balances

e) Nature ofrelated party relatlonships

Enlities and other parties related to the Fund include those parties who have ability to exercise
codlrol or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related
partics include mauagement personnel, thcir associates and close family members. Thc
fund/scheme is related to the following entities:

a) The County Covemment;
b) The Parent County Government Ministry;
c) Key management;
d) Board of Trustees; etc.

a

b) Related party transtctions

c) Key managcnrcnt remuneratiorr

d f)ue fron relatcd partles

I

T From Related Parties'

Tnnsfers To Related Parties

Board Of Trustees

Kcy Managernent Compensation

Total

Due From Parent Ministry

Due From County Covernment

Total

33

Doecriutlun
2022-2$

Krhc

)ercrlotlon
t022-702

Kshs

Dcscrlution l!.?1:!!7i.
K.shsh



B
A

e)

ia County (Public Oficers') Rerolvilg jtnd
rl and l?inancial Statentenls For lhe ended 3dh June 2023

Other Disclosures Continued

Due to rclated parties

2 Contlngent assets and contingent liabilities

ve delails)

,

I

Dr

Dr re To County Government

,e To Parent M

Dr ,e To Key Management Personnel

Tc tal

Cc rurt Case Xxx Agaiust the Fund

Bank Guarantees

Tc tal

34

2022-202



Butia Coun4, (Public Ofiicers') Revolvingfund
Annual Report and t'inincial Statements For lhe year ended 3Ut'June 2023

Notec To The Flnalcial Statenrents (Contlnued)

2E. Flnanclal rlsk nranegcacnt

Thc Fund's activitics exposc it !o a variety offinancial risks including credit and liquidity risks
and effects of changes in forcign currency. The Fund's overall risk management programme

foo.ses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

poEntial adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk.
Thc Fund does not hcdgc any risks and has in placc policics to ensllIe that credit is only
extended to custonrers with an established credit history.

The Fund's financial risk nranagenrent objectives and policies are detailed below:

a) Credit risk

The Fund has exposure to credit risk, rvhich is the risk that a counterparty will bc unablo to pay

armunts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with
banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
Muagernent assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
poridon, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on intemal or
extemal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the

stalement offinancial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the
entity's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
euvironmerrt. The rorrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements

repnesenting the entity's maximurn exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value
of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

(NB: The totals colwun should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in the

entity's statenrcnt oJ'financial posilion)

At 30 June 2022

Roceivables From Exchange
Transactions
Roceivables From Non-Exchange
Transactions

Bank Balances

Total

Roceivables From Exchange
Transactions

At 30 June 2021

Rccrivables From Non-Exchange
Tmnsactions

Bank Balances
'fotal a

35
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Busta Counry (Publit:
Anrual Report and Fi

Olfi ce rs' ) R e't o I vi n g Iu n d
incial Statements For the year ended 3Ah June 2023

NoSt To Thc Flnancial Statementr (Contlnued)

Tho customers under the fully pcrforming category are paying their debts as they continue

tradng. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncoltectible amounrs that the cntity has recognised in the financial ststements is considered

adequste to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

Tho entity has significant concentralion ofcredit risk on amounts due from 0

Tho board of trustees sets the Fund's credit policies and objectivcs and lays down parameters

witbin which ttre various aspects of credit risk management are opcrated.

b) Llquidity risk nranagcment

Uldmate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Fund Administrator, wlto
has built an approp_riate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the

entjry's short, medi'um and long-term funding and liquidity malragcment requirements. The

entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring offorecasts and actual cash tlows.

Thc table below represents cash flows payable by the Fund under non-derivative financial
liabilities by their remaining contractual maturitics at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

in lhe table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal

thcir carrying balances, as thc impact ofdiscounting is not significant.

a

At 30 Junc (Currertt IrY)

Trade Payables

I'rovisions

Employee Benefi t Obligation

Total

Trade Payables
,

Current Portion Of Borrowings

Provisions

Enrployee Bcnefi t Obligation

Total

36

l)d.rcrlnl lorr

l,c6s tlran
nlonth

Kshs

I Bctn'ecu I
Inronthc
nft;.-

3 I Qvcr.
I montl I Totar

r,!

Curent Portion Of Borrowings

At 30 June (Comparative FY)



Butia Cou nty (Publt<: Ofiicers') Revolving Jund
Antual Repor! and Financial Slatements For the yea r ended 3Ah June 2023

Noles To The Financial StNternents (Contlnued)

c) Markct risl<

Thc board has put in place an internal audit funcrion to assist it in assessing the risk faccd by the

endry on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test thc design ald effectivcness of its intenral
acounting and opcrytional cortrols.

Mtket risk is ttre risk arising from changcs in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices

and forcign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or thc value of its holding of
finmcial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
maket risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optirnising the retum. Overall
reryonsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk Managemcnt Committee.

Thc Fund's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk
mmagement policies (subject t<.r review and approval by Audit and Risk Mrne3cmcnt
Cunmittee) and for thc day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to markct risks or the m8ffi it rEa[ il
mqnages and measures the risk.

l. Forelgn currency rlsk

Tlr entity has transactiona.l currency exposures. Such exposure arises ttuough purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local curency. Invoiccs
detrominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days frorn the date of the invoice and

conversion at the tinle ofpayment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The carrying arnount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetsry liabilities4t thc end of thc reporting period are as follows:

Fund uanoges lorcign exchange risk form future comnercial lransaclions and recognised assels atrd

liobtlitles by projectirg lor erpected sales proceeds and nalchittg lhe same wilh etpecled payments

t

At 30 June (Current FY)

Financial Asscts

lnvestrnents

Cash

Dcbtors/ Receivables

Llabilities

Trade And Other Payables

Borrorvings

Net Foreign Currcncy Asset/(Llability)

3'1

l

DqscrlDtlon

Other
rrrrnnclr
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Busia County (Public Olfcers') Revolving firntt
Annual Re ort and [;inancial Statentenls For the yea r entled 3(lh June 202i

Notes To The Financiat Statements (Continued)

Forelgn currency scnsitivity analysls

ThC following table demonstrates the effect on the Fund's statement of financial petformancc

on applying fre sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate of the three

nraln Uansaction 
"urren"i"r, 

rvitlr all other variables held colstant. The reverse would also

ocour if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all ottrer variables held constant.

Euro t0%

t0%USD

l0o/o
a_(Comparative FY)

Euro

t0%USD

Inlerest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

r6ult ofchanges in interest rate levels. The entity's intcrest rate risk arises from bank deposits.

This exposes the Fund to cash flow interest rate risk. 'Ihc interest rate risk exposure arises

mrinly from interest rate nlovements on the Fund's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the intcrest ratc risk, management has endeavoured to bank with instinrtions that

offer favourable interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

The Fund analyses its intcrcst rate exposurc on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity

analysis. This involves detcrmining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifu' The

scnsitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign

eXchange rates; remain constant. The analysis has been perlormed on the same basis as the

prior yir. Using tllc cnd of the year figures, the scnsitivity analysis indicates the impact on the

rt"ta..nt of coirpr'ehensive inCome ii cunent floating intcrest rates increase/decrease by one

percentage poini as a decrease/increase of Kshs xxx (2022: Kshs xxx )' A rate

iacrease/deciease of 57o would result in a decrease/increase in profrt before tax of Kshs xxx

(2021 - Kshs xxx).

38
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ii. Intercst ratc risk



Busia CouttS'
Annral Repor

(Public Olficerc') Ilevolving lund
I and linancial Statemenls For the yeor ended 3At' June 2023

222,000,000.00

Revaluation reserve

Revolving fund

(9, l9l ,267.88)Abcumulated surplus

62,808,732.12207,917,150.81Total funds

Tolal borrowings

(t4,470,414.30)Less: cash and bank balanccs

Net debt/(excess caah and cash equivalents)

8'1 .230h89.560/0Cearing

29. Events after the rcportlng period

ThCre were no matedsl adjusting and non- adjusting events after tbe reporting period.

30. Ultimate snd Holdlng Entity

Thc cntity is a County Public Fund esrablished by Busia County Public Offrccrs' Revolving

Futrd Aciunder the Dlpartment of Finance ICT & Economic Planning. Its ultimate parent is the

Comty Govemment of Busia.

31. Currency

Thp financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)'

a

39

Noles To The Financlal Statcments (Contlnued)

d) Cepltal risk monagement.

Th( objcctive of the Fund's capital risk management is to safeguard tlrc f1n!'s e.bility to

codinue as a going concern. Tire entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

72,000,000.00

( 14,082,849. l3)

(9,074,226.10)
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Buia County (Public
Anrual Report and Fi

Oficers') Revolving funcl
nancial Statements For lhe Year ended 30t' June 2023

20. Annerer
An[er t: Progress on Foltow Up Of Prior Year Audltor's Recommendstlons

ThO following is the surnmary of issues raised by the cxtcmal auditor, and mansS,ement comments

that werc provided to the auditor.

Galdance Nolest

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report'

(iD Obtain the "Issue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from final

o(temal audilreport that is signed by Management.

(ili) Before approving rhe report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your Fund responsible for implementation of each issue'

(iv) lndicatc the srarus of "Resolved" or'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report

to National Treasury.

Fund Manager/Accounting Officer (entcr title of head of Fund)

oate...c6.l.t.*.f ..*.s..*.*...

a

Resolved

After taking into account

the auditor's report, the

fund did recalculations

and done amended

financial statement

attached here as 3

l.l
ln gccuracies in

financial

statemcnts

Resolved

The fund made efforts to

have all the monies

recovered and treasury

remitted the moncy

t.2

September 2023Not resolved
The process is on goingFailure to jointly

register loan
property

September 2023Not resolvedLack of property

insurance rccords

40

N<r, ou llte
brtcnral

rudlt llcport

Status:
(Resobea

Not
Resitvet

lscuc /
Obiervntious
fro m Audllot

Mrnrgemeu I

comments

Unremitted
payroll

deductions

)

The process is ongoing3



,

Busia County
Busia County (Publie Olficers') Revolving Fund

Anner II: Inter-Fund Conlirmation Letter
IInserl your Letterhead]

Busia County Public Olficers Revolving Fund
P.O..Box private Bag ,! -6ustd
The Busia County Public Officers Revolving Fund wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 30m June 2023 as indicated in the table

below. Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts you received and populate the column E in the table below Please sign and

stamp this request in the space provided and retum it to us.

June 2023Amounts Disbursed SC/SAG hs as at

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

Amount Received
by Busia County

Public Officers
Revolving Fundl
(KShs) as at 30th

Junc 2023

Total
(DF(A+8rc)

Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Recurrent (A) Development (B)Date
Disbursed

Reference
Number

0t5 00 000 15 000 000l5 000,000Nov 2022
085,000,000 85 000 00085,000 000Ma 2023

50 000 050 000 00050 000 0002 Ma 2023
0150J00,0!0 1s0,000,000fi[@0.000Total

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated.

It l!oL3
.......Datebrp sHqNAH Hk Se U'IHead of Accountants department of beneficiary Fund:

Name

4l

Annual Report and Finrncial Statements for the ended June 30, 2023
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Busio County
Busia County (Pubtic Olficers') Rcvolving Fund

ended June 30, 2023Annual Reporl and Financial Statemcnts for the year

Annex III: Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Q1Q3Ql
I

Q2 a

42

a

mieq
trme

Project
Obiectiv6Descri

I}oiect



tl-,r

Busia County
Busia Couaty (Pablic Officen) Revolvitrg Fund
Annual Report and Financial Strtements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Annex IV: Reporting on Disaster Management Expenditure
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